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Chepareria sub county level 4 Hospital (l;i:est l,okot Courtty Govenmtent)
Annual Report arul Financial Statenrcnts .[or The Yeor Ended 3dh June 2022

I. Key Entity Information and Management

(a) Background information

Chepareria sub county Hospital is a level (4) hospital established under gazette notice number

786 vol. C)O(ll No. 24 dated 46 Feb 2020 and is domiciled in WestPokot Counry underthe

health Department. The hospital is governed by a Board of Management.

(b) Principal Activities

To promote and participate in provision of affordable, integrated and

high Qual ity promotive,curati ve and rehabil itative

Vision Statement

A model referral hospital committed to exccllence in quality health care provision,

Innovation, training and research.

Mission Statement

To promote and participatcin the provision of integrated and high qualitl,

promotive, preventivc,curative and rehabilitativc healthcare services to all Kenyans

(c) Key Management

The hospital's management is undcr thc lollowing kcy organs

- County department of health

- Board of Management

- Accounting Officer/ Mcdical Supcrintcndcnt

- Health Management team (l'lMT)

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held ollce during the financial year ended 30ft June

2022 and who had direct fiduciary rcsponsibility rvere:
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Dcsiqnation
Neme

Medical Superintenden-

Mrs Miriam Lopus

(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

i) Audit and Risk Management Committee

The west Pokot county Audit Committee was constiltrred and inducted on l.,July 20lg as per
the provisions of the Public Finance and Managernent Act, 2012. ltis mandated to review audit
reports and advise the Hospital on institutional risk management

ii) County Assembly committees

Article 185(3) provides that a County Assembly, rvhile respecting the principle of the
separation of powers, may exercise oversight over the County Executive Committee and any
other county Executive organs. The oversight role of the county assembly is cxcrcised
directly by all members of the county assembry and through county assembry committees
The following are the committees responsible for oversight in rhe County assembry:

Public Accounts and Investment Committee

Health Sectorial Committees

Finance and Planning Committee

Implementation Comm ittee

I

a

I

a

o.

2 ospital AdministratorH
omongole JennipherMrs D

Mr Benn O. Oluoch
Accontant MrDesmond k. Lotam
Supply chain

s Nancy LowoiMr
5 ursing Officer In ChargeN

S/I{o Name Designa tion
Mr. Paul Loitangiro fuliilem

2 Mr -I'h
omas Pkemoi Lotiak4 CpA

., Mr. Kizito Musakala Makhuni CpA

Chairpelson

Mernber

Secretiuy

4 Ms Irene Chebet Lorot Mernber

III

I
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4.



Chepareria sub courtly level 4
Annual Report a,rd Firtortcifll

Hospital (ll'est Pokot Coun,t Govenmrcnt)
Statemenis.for The Yeor Ended 3dh June 2022

(f) Entity Headquarters
Chepareria sub county hospital
P.O. Box 63-30600
Kapenguria
KENYA

(g) Entity Contacts

Telephone: (+254)7 361 8221 6
E-mail : medsupcsch@westpokot. go. ke
Website: www.west pokot. go. ke

(h)

I

(i)

CI)

(k)

Entity Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank

Kapenguria Branch,
P.O. Box 66 - 30600
Kapenguria, Kenya
Kapenguria Town Centre

Independent Auditors
Office of the Auditor Gencral
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Anniversary Towers, Universi ty Way
Nairobi, Kenya

Principal l,egal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Oflice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

West Pokot County Attorney
P.O. Box. 222-30600
kapenguna, Kenya

lv



Chepareria sab cou rtt1, level 4 Hospitol (ll.esr pokitt Lcutrty Goyenmte t)Annuol Report find f-inancial Stotemet stbr Tlre l'eur Entled 3dh June 202 2

II. The Board of Mana ement
il

Directors
Details

orwa is the current chair
of the board. Mr Korwa is 62 yaers

old. Mr.Korwa holds a Diploma in
pharmacy from KMTC Nairobi

Campus. He runs one of the largest

pharmaceutical company in the

county.

He brings in over 20 years of
experience in managing health

facilities.

MrMartin K

)

Mr Jackson Kaliwai is the vice chair

to the board. Mr Jackson trained at

Kenya Technical Training College

and he is currently employed as a

warden Ack St John chepareria parish

J

Mr Moses Komole Lotolim

Board Member

i
I

Mr Moses Komole Lotim Is an

independent member to the board

Mr. Komole is a planner by

profession

And currently working at Kerio

Valley Development Authority

I

olr*rlt I

lvlr Martin Korwa

Board chairman

MrJackson Kaliwai

Vice Chairman

ilu,

-
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4

Mrs Irene Chepkazi Kapkama

Board member

Mrs lrene Chepkama is an

independent board member. Mrs

Chepkemei holds a certificate in

secretariat and she is

currently employed at Chepareria

vocational trainin g center

5

\
t

Mr kiraule Pyatich

Board member

Mr Kiraule is an independent board

member. Mr. Kiraule holds diploma

in accountancy and he is currcntly

workingas finance oflicer at

University of Eldoret

Mn Julia Kamketo

Board Member

Mrs.lulia is an independent board

member

Mrs Julia is a teacher by profession

She holds a Diploma in ECDE.

She is a Retired teacher

vl

J

-

.f.. \
I IH
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I

Mr David Pkumun

Board member

Mr David is an inependent board

member.Mr David is a farmer by

profession

I

Mrs Jenipher Dornongole

Secretary to the board

Mrs Domongole is the secretary to the

board and holds a Diploma in

Medicine from kenya medical

training Nakuru campus she is

currently working at Kapenguria

Referal hospital as a clinical officer

vll

I
,;ti,
,t'I
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III. Menagement T'eam

Mrs Domongole Jenipher

Medical Superintendent

The Medical superintendent

Chairlady to the

Management team, AIE
Holder

Secretary to the board of
management

2

Mr Benn O Oluoch

Hospital Administrator

Health Administrative

Ofiicer

In charge ofall

administrative issues.

3

t'
I
t

Nursing Officer

In charge ofnursing

services within the hospital

vl

T',he

ManagementRef
Details

I

I
I
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Supply chain otfi r:cr

Nancy is in chargc ot'all the

pfocultmcnt

Diploma in procurcmunt

FI.l^.-t ^^l"t-,.1'-i..r-rr.lt |lv! PUr, lLLrrrtrr/

Mrs Miriarn lopus

Nulsing Otlicer In chargc

Hospital Accoun[ant

Handle all tinancial ltratter's

rn the lacility

Bashelol of business

rnanagcnre nt Moi university

4

Dcsmond Kibct

Hospital accounta,rt

5

Nancy Lowoi

Supply uhain otlicu

II

.J

f l,
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Cheptreriu sub couuty lewl 1 Hospitill ( tl/est pokol C\nrt ty Goternueu t).lnnuol RcP0rt und F'inantiol Stutent ents Jbr The l'cur Eudei .jlf^ June 2t)22

I\'. Chairman'sStatement

on bchalf r-rf thc chcparcria lrospital board T want to taks this .pportunity to thank thcnr all anrl
thcre enterer hospital lnanagenlent fbr giving rheir best corporation in ensuring service deli'ery
a'd gc,cral nu*i,g ,t tlrc tacility tbr thc ycar to the cxpcctetl st,r,dar.cr,s.

This yeau'had a lot ol challengcs. In tetms of inh ast uctulc thc lacility lacks atlequare building to
incotporate somc sclvices ofl'ercd by a lcvel tbur lacility such as enough wards to accornrnodat€
requircd lrcd capacity, thc clerking roonr are nor also cnough.
Dcspitc all thosr: challcngcs thu litcility wtu able to otlcr scrviccs to somu satisftrction of.
rnajority of r-rur clicnLs as Pcr our availablc scr'iocs such as matcrnity, out-paticnt scrvicr:s and
lab scn'iccs

Thc board also had an oppol'tl,urity tlrough thc rrrc<Iical supcr.intendcnc to lbr.nrally r.cqucst tbr
construction rrf pactliatric u'arrl t.r accommotlatc r:hil.lrcn as thc-y rvcrc sharing rvar.rls with thc
adult"s.

I want also t'o cxtcrtd arr apprcciation to thc cormty govellmtcut. lbr cnsuring uow ol' tacility
in:provement fund to the facility- This funds did enable the thcility rneet rhere daily expenditur.es
and ptocuremen! of cotnntodities as per thcrc necds in ordcr to o fl'er scn,iccs to their clients
rhe tacility also had challenges rvith votc allocation siucc volc heads rvhcrc not issucd iu; per
thcir plioriry itrciB thus hintlcring scrviccs in somc alcas. I wish to suggcsr that as wc go rrlong
Ihe county governnlcnt should consirler allocating lirnds as pcr the hospital lnanagcmcnt tcarn
lccommendation sincc thcy ar.c bascd on thcir nccds.

As wc lbtuscu in thc t'uturc thsrc is nccrl lbr crpirnsion of thu fac,ility to includc scrvicus such:us
rninor thcatrc, cyc unit, anrl rlcntistry anrl radiology dcpartmcnls as thr grpulati6n thc attcnlcl ttr
be ligh as shown in tltc workload ol'rhe hospitirl.

Itlb*^
Nsnrc: Mr Martin Konrya

Chairpcrson ot rhe boar.d.

\



Chepareria sub counqr level 4 Hospitat (West po!;oi icuttty Governntent)Attnual Report and Financiol Statentents for The I'eur Entted 3dh June 2422

V. Report of The Medical Superintendent
The facility made tremendous gains rhrough the FIF resources during the year since there was
adequate supply ofdrugs non-pharms and lab reagents procured from meds to bridge the gap by
KEMSA supplies which were not available. The facility made tremendous improvernerrt ou
revenue collection due to the adequate procurement ol'pharmaceuticals wrth the FIF funds. This
also helped in introduction of lab tests lhat where not offered as lhe reagents where made
available in sufljcient quantilies.

The facility also managed to improve ils working environment by procuring furniture for several
offices which didn't have for exampre tabres, office chairs among others.

Thc N{cdical supcrintendent tvith the chair ofthe boarcl rvhere able to approach lhc Govcmor on
a consultative rneeting to discuss the challenges at rhe facility was facing. They were able to
negotiate for construction ofpaediatric ward to be included in lhe next financial year.

The t'acility was also able Io introduce NHII'electronic clairns system. This tremendously helped
in the increase of revenue collection, membership of our NHIF clients who chose our facility
also increased hence increased capitation paid by NHIF

Name: Mrs Domongole Jenipher

Secretary ofthe Board

x!
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VI. Statement Of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives

Section 164 Subsection 2 (0 of the l'ublic Finance Management Act, 2012 requires rhe

accounting olTicer to include in the financial statement, a stratement of the County Government

entity's perform ance agai nst predeterm i ned obj ecti ves.

IYcst Pokat has 3 strategic pillars/ themcsiissucs and objcctives u"ithin the cu.rrent Stratcgic Plan

for thc FY 2022- 2023 . These strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as follows;

Pillar /theme/issue l: preventivc and promotive health services

Pillar/theme/issue 2: curative and rehabilitative health services

Pillar/Iheme/issue 3: general adrninistration planning and support services

Chcpareria Sub County Hospital dcvclopcd its annual rvork plans bascd on thc above J

pillars/Themcs/lssucs and othcr priority arcas. Asscssment of the Board's performance against its

annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The Chepareria Sub County Hospital achieved its

performance targets set for the FY 2021/2022 pcriod for its 3 strategic pillars, as indicated in the

diagram below:

Reduced

prevenlive

discascs

I :prcventive and

promotive health

servlccs

To reduce the

burden of

preventive

diseases

Objcctivc Act ivitics Ach icvemen ts

Community

knowledge on

prevention i.e,

corona virus,

Reduction in

cholera cases

which was

done through

sensitization

of the client's

use of

conslruclion

)ir I

Strategic
Pillar/Iheme/lssues

-Strengthen

preventivc and

promotive health

services through roll

out of primary care

networks

-cornmunity

sensitization on

preventive measures

of communicable

diseases

lr.c1-

I'erforrnance
I nrl ita tors



Ch ri suh county lewl 1 Hospitul (llest Pokol Coun4t Goternnteat)
lnn fl ort unl FinonL'idl Stuter ents t)r The Yeor Ended Stlh June 2022

of sinrple pit

latrines and

toilcts.

R cducud

malaria cases

duc to

distributii:n on

ncts.

lehabi

strrvtc

tativc l'rcalth

ve:utd Io provide

cll'cctivc and

ulllcicnt

culative and

rehabilitative

at all hcalth

sct"l tcc

tlclivcry

-curd patrctrts

-rehabilitarc

-procuement ot

thugs on timc

-continuous uapacity

building of'stalf on

key technical arrcars

md logistics

lnanagenrcnt

Thcrc was no

stock out of

critical drugs

-pa[i€nts were

treatcd iurd

managctl at

the thcility

level

-lou' cascs oI'

rcfcrrals

becausc ol'

improvcd

seruices at the

hospital.

Due to

{onstruction

of thc lab

reduccd ques

of rutun'al irs

clicnts could

be tested at

thr: facility

3: gcnc T,r pror idu -snloilth -Opcralization of -rro hick ups

x r

t



Cheporeiu sub couttyt letel I Ho spitul ( llest Pokol Counly Goyernnteu t).lnnual Reporl anl Fintatial Stutentenls.lbr The l'eor Ended \th Jane 2t)22

adnriniscration

plnnning and suppor.r

scfvioes

leadcrship and

policy

dilection tbr

ctli:ctivc

hcalth set"r,'iccs

operations at

(rc tacilitv

-adhcrence to

l'inancial

nranagement

ac$

-strict

adherence to

hcalth acs

-provision of support

serviucsQ:rocurcmcnt,

administrativc and

accounting)

Ensulc rvorkers

arlhcrc to hualth aots

in treating clicn ts

HMT rn running rhe

facility

-minimal

brcach of

tinancial acts-

adoptiou ot'

thu FIF(

facility

irtrproventcnt

acr)

xt\,



ch riu sub tounty letel I Hospitul ( ryest pokot Chunty Goternaterr t)-tnnu ReporT unl ?'inanciol ,ltulct,tenls of The I'eur Ended Jdh June 2022

Yil. (' rate Covel'nance Sta(ctnen a

t| rd tninutrs

Thc [J

tacilitv

iurd u

spuoial

of the

prcsclrt,

subject o

cot

A major ot'thc mcrnbcrs of trrc Board ot'thc hospital is a quorum to corducr busi,css, but a
smaller be. may meet antl s.mpel aftendansc ot'.bsent ntembers iu presor.ibed. A member ot
lhe Boar of tlrc hospital rvho is interestcd in any discussions or decis itrn-nraking rcgarding any

transaction u,trer considcrati., by thc Boa'tr, sha, not bc corulted iu parlicipating in

rt{ of clrepareria sub county Hospital holds irs sittings to thnsact t6e busines.s of the
uarterly that is aftcr cvery threc rronths. The chairpcrson of trre Board of hospitar may,
requ€st ur wntirg by at reast orre-thirtr ol' thc mcurbers ot,trrc Boiu.d shaI, co,ve,e a
.cring to rransrct any urgunt busi.css oithc Bo:rrd. Arr rcgurirr mcctings of.rhc Board
spital called tbr tlaursacting lrusiness, where a majoritv of the menrl:crs elccterj ar.e
rall [rc opcn to dre public.

re Pefst)n rvith lolowlcdgc and crpaic,ce iu liniurcc a,d adrninish.ation marte's
wo pcoplc rcprcscnting spccial intcrcst gr.oup (plD,youth and WomL-n)

bc appointcd to rhe board it'he o' shc hords a degree frorn a r.ecognized unir.crsiry
rolrsu'atc a high level ol'integrity and leadership a. senior lcvcl eitrrer public or

thc r.lisc rons o' dcoision-making, and is not L'ntitlud to vorc on or irgr.cu to thc suhjcct or
transacti rclatin.q to it

,\pp ntmcn( o1' horrd nrentbrrs

Thc boiud mcmbcrs will bc ninc consistrng ol
r. ch ttpcrson sppointed lry county executive rncnrbcr cornrniltce nrembcr
2. At sulr ce11s1y administr.utor appointed undcr section 50(b) ol'counly governnlent. act,

l0 1

3. Mc ir:el supcrintcndcnt who shall bc thc sccrctary
4. Per rvidr k,owlcdgc u,d erpcricncc on hcarth nruttcrs appointcd by thc exccutive

Ittce lnentber

5. Thr pcrsons u'ho shall bc rcsitlcnts ,f arca ofjurisdicti,n app.int*l by thc cxccutivc
ittec nrernbcr rcprescnting the lbllou,ing categorics ot.person_

r)

ii)

A person c

in Kcnya.



Cheptreiu sub ounty level I Hospitul (l* esl pokol Couu ly Goternueu t).lanual Rt4X)rt und ?'inanciol Stutemenls Jbr The l'cor Ended -ldh June 2022

prt'ate' meets- l'equircment ot'chapter six ol'the consritution and not. scrving a state ollicer. holl alevcl O ceniticate ol'c<Iucirtion or cquivaleut.
Mr:mbcrs of rhc board aparl tionr r:x-ofiiuio shafl horrl oftir:c tbr a pcriod ot.thrcc ycars

Roles anrl Funrtions of the Boatd

Thc countv irnd sub-county hospital managcrncnt bo:uds shall _
(a) Bc rr:sponsiblc tbr thc supc'vision 

'f thc firnds aUocatr:d to thc rcspcctivc hospitars;
1b; opcn a.d opc,atc bank accouors at a trankls) ro bc approvcd by drc county Erccutivc

Members rcsporuiblc lbr matters retated to tinalrcc irr rhe County;
(cJ Rccommcntl activities to bc inclurlctl in thc htrspital work plars bascrl .n thc c,unty hcalth

scctor srrategic plan;

1d) Causc to be kcpt books ol'accorulls and rccords ot accorurLs ol.thc incomc, cxpclditur.c,
tuscts .nd liabiritics of rhc hospital as p.cscribcd by thc Accounting otliccr.;
(c) cause to be prepared and subrritted to the adrninistrator of thc tirn<l rnonthly, quarrerly and

annual tinancial rcports us prescriberl; urd
(t) causc to bc kcpt il p,m ncnr rccord of a[ its dcribcrarions.

Rcnruncration of thc Boartl

Tltc nrembcts oI'thc Board oI'tlrc Hospital aue not cntitlcd to a salan,. Howevcr, menrbers of thc
Boiu'd rus paid allowiurccs as adviscrt by thu Salarics anrr Rcmuncration oommrssion.
Il a rt:cmbcr prcsL'nt diructly or intlircctly intcrcstcrl into thc outcomc of any rlcr:isi.n .n thc
nralter bctbre the boru'd shall clisclose rltc tact and not take par.r in thc consi4eralion or discussion
ot. or votc on iuty of thc mattcr iu contlict.
Boarrl rnurnbcrs shall c,mply with thc c'tlc .l'conrluct g.vcrning public r-rl)iccrs antl pr,r.ision.s
ot'chaptcr sir ot drc Kenya constitution.

x\'l



Ch riu sub couttty lewl I Hospitttl (West Pokot County Goremntenl)
lnnu Report und I'inanciol Stotemenlslbr The l'ear Endet Stfh June 2022

vltl anagenrcnt Discussion anrl .{nall sis

I)c'pi not hnving all thc tlupartmcnts in thc tacility, we wcrc ablc to nranagr: most of thc cascs

prcse ted to us by our clicnts in ordel to capture the belorv daur. Those that wc could noc nlanrge

*'c ha to rclcr to our mothcr hospital bcing Kapcnguria r,ounty rct'erral hospital

I'his t lc summarizcs it as

ITEI\

Durirr thc yurr wu had thc bc,lou,sponsors tnd parlnurs

S 0 orshi s and artncrs

!'inan ial performancc thnt includm
rc\'€nue sourocs include s:

- Cash collcction (uscr ti:c) (t ab, Drugs, Filcs/OPD, Eyc ctc)
-NHIF
Surnrnarisr:d :r.s:

FV 2020/2t)21 j'Y 2[2112022

acl tyIlctl uap :5 26

-1()-+0-1attcndance both inpatient and out pdtientParicn]t i6t l4

Acoitlfnt iurd cmcrgun,.:y ilttcndancc 520 651

3607 1858Spuui I cliniu attsndrutcc.l

Avcra e le ngth ofs&ry- 2dys 2dys

6'!ei 7 3u/uBcd ofcupancy rate

Nlorta ty l ateli 0.41u,, 0.l80o

S,NO Stakcholder R olr:

I TJNICEF WASII
2 Cr<-rss Souictylntcrnational Rud

(IRC)
Nutritiorr

AN{PATH Uzima HIV-Caru and trcirtrncnt
-+ r\ction A-qainst Flunger ( A('F) Nutrition

AMREF KENYA Nutrition
WASH

6 lntcrnational Rcscuc Committee
(tRc)

Nutrition-Comltined Protocol
Malnutrition Study (CoMPAS)

lbr Acutc

\to\'l ll ( ..\sll
t 7{).96(}JUL 2I
147,280AUG 2I

SIIPT I I ll{0.09t)

x\.



Cheporeriu sub couttly letel I Hospitd (llest pokol Co
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nvironnrcntal And Susteinabilit-v Rtporting
cria Sub County exists to transform lives. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy'

the clienr/Citizen first, tlelivering hcalth scrl'iccs, and irnproving opcrationsl excellcnce.

Relow is an outline o[ the organisation's policies and activities that promote sustainability.

i) Sastain n hility slreregt' un d pntlilc

Partncring with varitrus parl.ncrs and sptrnsors, this cnsurcs supporl- on progranrs that

lacility cannot shoulder.

The involvclrent ot'tacility in budget makiug plocess contitms iu sustainabilily as rhc

laciliry can plan rvhat ro do in tuture and anticipatc challenges that nright happen in

tutulc by budgcting fbr therc cxpcnditurc.

ii) E nvironmental performa ncc

Wastc is mrutagcd at thc tircility by incirrcrating of wiuts products iurd burying of glitss

bottles.

Therc is a t'unctioning sewu-qc systcnl

iii) Entphtyec welarc

Enrployees are allowed to altend various trainings

There is a continuous taining on IPC's at the lacility.

Elrployccs arc thc first to bc immuuizcd agairrst discases thar thcv may corlt rijt on thcir

jobs

iv) Market pluce Practices-

The orgonisalion should oulline its elforts ltt:

tl Rcsponsihle conpetilion pruclice.

b) The CScpareria sub county Hospiral applies the principlcs of public proctu'emcnt

as cspouscd i1 r[c Pulrlic Proctu-cment and Asset Disposal Act. 201 5; lairncss,

r:orrrpctirivuncss, rntcgrity, pr otcssionalrsm. traninarcnuy and acuountability,

pr.6nr<-rtion of local industry, promotion of citizun contraotors anil maxirnization of

vuluc tbl lnoncy.

c) Thc Cor,urty uses the Public kocuremcnt and Regulatotl Authofity market price

inrlcx rnd its ou'n rnarket survey to assul'e competitive prices of procured goods,

works and setlices. In cornpliancc u'ith achicving atlinnativc aclion as provided

by the Constiruriorr undtr Articles 55 and 56 :ltd ru ctractcd in the Public

xr\
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Procu'cnrent and Assct Disposal Act, 2015 Sections l5-5.1J6,157 & l5li, rhc
cowrty rescrvcs 30"/o of its procurerncnt budget to youths, \\,omen anrr per.sons
Living u'ith Disabirity' Fudhcrmorc, thu dcpartmcnr prcp rcs an, subnrits thc
reports to Ifublic Procuemcnt and Rcgulatot_t, Authority euarterlv and bi-
annually us rcquiretl turdcr thc Act and Executive Ordct_ no. 2/2011\.

tl) .Responsr6 lc Supply choin and supplier relations
Usc ol'local supplics

Maintain their cont rcts

Making payrnen* tb' a, rocar purchase orde rc and se rvice orde r.s upon deri'ery
and conrplction of' the works contl actcd to the supplicrs

el Rcspottsible marketiag und advertiscmeal
Thc hospital unsul'rs that aI matcriars or infblrnation tbr markuting arc rc'calud ro
tfie pubic

We pronrotc products that ar.c sal.e to our. clicnts
Wc abidc by govcrnnrcnt laws

l) Producl slewardship

Pr'oducts procu.crl a.c as pcr .hc ,rarket ratcs ractoring cxpdlrses incuncd to
deliver

Considcring profir rnargins fbr the clicnr.

Coqtorote Sociol Responsibilitl, / Community E ngogements
Tree plturting is donc at the lacility.
Continuous convursation with thc uommunity on thcir hcarth mattcrs suuh as
nutrition, Ai<Is and IB

|,)
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Ch reri sub tountl lerel I Hospitul (l*est Pokot County Goternnrcnt)
lnnu Report und Financiol StutementsJbr The fear Endetl 3f^ June 2022

x.R port of Thc Board ol'Management

ard nrernbcrs subrnit thcil report together u'ith thc Audited Financial Statcnrcnts lbr the
dcd Junc 30, 2022. whish show thc stirtc o1'thc hospital's atlairs

Thc
ycill

l'r'in al artivitics

Thc p nuipal activitics of thc cntity arc to promotc and partir:ipatc in provision of aflbrtlabli:,
lntcgr ted and high Quality promotivc. curutivc and relrabilitative

Rrsu

'I'he r ulG ol the entity lin the year cnded June 30 are set out r)n page I

lloar of i\{anagrmrnt

l'hc bers ot'the Board who scrled during the yeal iuc shown on ptge xi to xiii

-.\udit rs

Thc A tor General is lesponsible fbr thc starutory audit of tlre Chcparelia sub county hospital

1 ;IC(: dance with Artic,lc 229 ol' dre Constitution ot' Kcnya and thc Public Audit Aut 201 5 lln'

ended Junc 30, 2022 in aucorduroe to section .13 ot'the Public Audit Act, 2015 whichthc yc

crD p rs the Auditor Genelal to appoint an auditor to audit on his bchali

By Or r ot'the Board

Mr's l) mongolc Jcniphcr (M EDI('AL SUPER TNTENDENT)

Sign ffi date &o\,$q1
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XI. Statement otBoard of Management,s Responsibitities

Scction 164 of thu Public Financc Managcrncnt Act, 2012 lFucilitl. intprrt,euenr l.-urul .4cr
20I 9)) reqttircs the Boa'd of Managentent to prepare linancial staternents in respect ol. GSCH,
which givc a u'uc and fail' vicrv ol tl'lc stalc ot' alliils ol' thc GSCH at thc end of- thc linaucial
year'/period urd the operating rcsults ol' the cscH lbr tlrat ycir/period. The Boartl trl
Managentent is also required !o ensure that the cSCH kecps plopel. accounting records rvhich
dise losc witll rersonablc scctuucy the linancial posirion ot'thc CSCH. The council nrcnrber.s are
also lcsponsiblc fbr saltguiu.ding thc asscrs of thc CSLIH.

rhc Boiud ol Malagcnrcnt is lcsponsitrlc lbr thc prcparation and prescntatio, ol' thc cSCH
financial statcmonts, which givc a truc and tair Yicw ot'thc srarc ot'attirirs oi'thu CSCH tbr and irs
at tlte entl of the Iinanciel ycar (pe[iod) ended on June 30, 2022. This rcsponsibiliry includes: 1i)
nrainraining adcquatc tinatrcial nranagcment an'iurgenlcn$ and cnsuring that thcsc eontinuc t. lrc
cft'cr:tivc thr.ughout thc rcp.rting pcritx! (ii) maintaining propcr irocounting rcc,r[s, u,hich
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any !irne rhe financial position ot'the e nrity, (iii) designing,
irnplementing and maintaining irrtcmal contl.ols rclcvant !o flrc prcprar.4lion and firir pr.cscntatiorr
ot'lhe linan<;ial sutemenG, and ensuring that thcy are lice riom material n.risstatcments. whethcr.
due to error or. fiaud, (ir') sat'cguarding the assers ot' thc cscH; 1r,) serecting and apprying
appropriate accounting policics, and tvi) making accounting estimutcs thsr ar.€ rcasonable in tlc
circumstiurces.

Thc Boald ot'Managcntcnt acccpts rcsporuilrility tbr cscH tinancial sratcmclts, w6ic5 havc Lrccn
ptcparcd using :rppropriatc accrrunting policics supporlctl by r.-asonablc anrl prudcnt judgcnrcnls
and estitnates, in contbrnrity u'irh lnternational Public Sector Accounring standards (lpSAS), and
in drc trranner rcquir.ed by thc PFM Ar,t, l0l2 aru) 1_ Focili4t intpro.r,enten! Fund _4ct 2t)t9). Tltc
Board urcmbets arc ol the oPiIi.n that the CSCH tinancial slarcrreuts give a truc iurd fair.vicrv ot
tlrc state o1'cSCH transactions during rhe tinancial yerr cnded June 30, 2022, andof rhe cSCI{s
tinsncial position as at that datc. The Boarrl nrernbcrs furlhcr conlimr thc complereness of. t5e
accourtitlg lecords maintained lbr the GSCH, which havc becn rclied upon in dre pr.cpar.atiou ol.
thc (ISCH finrurcial statcmunts as wcll rs thr: adcrluacy of rhu systr:ms of intcrnal linancial control.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON CHEPARERIA SUB-COUNTY LEVEL 4
HOSPITAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022. COUNW GOVERNMENT OF
WEST POKOT

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guirCelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
govemance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Quallfied Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chepareria Sub-County Level 4
Hospital - County Government of West Pokot set out on pages 1 to 30, which comprise
of the statement of financial position as at 30 June,2022, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of

Repor! ofthe Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Goverlment of ltest Pokot
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significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained allthe information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County
Government of West Pokot as at 30 June, 2022, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the period then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management
Acl,2012, the County Governments Act, 2012 and the Health Act,2017.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Unsupported Gash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.175,483. The balance includes Kshs.155,037 in respect of a local bank account
which was not supported by a cash book, certificate of bank balance and bank
reconciliation statements. ln addition, the cash and cash equivalents balance includes
Kshs.20,446 in respect of Facility lmprovement Fund (FlF) operation account as
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements. However, the balance reflected is as per
the certificate of bank balance instead of the reconciled cashbook balance of
Kshs.17,343.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.175,483 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported in-Kind Contributions from the County Government

The statement of financial performance reflects in-kind contributions from the County
Government of Kshs.80,161,680 as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. The
amount comprises of salaries and wages of Kshs.71 ,707,23O and pharmaceuticals/non-
pharmaceuticals supplies of Kshs.8,454,450 paid on behalf of the Hospital by the County
Executive of West Pokot. However, no supporting documents were provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of in-kind contributions from the
County Government of West Pokot amounting to Kshs.80,161,680 could not be
confirmed.

3. !naccurate Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.157,780 as reflected in Note 14 to the financial statements. The amount
relates to dues from the National Health lnsurance Fund (NHIF) whose records indicate
a balance of Kshs.596,900 resulting to an unexplained variance of Kshs.439,120.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.'l 57,780 could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level I Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of l{est Pokot
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4. lnaccurate Grants from Donors and Development Partners lncome

The statement of financial performance reflects Nil amount of grants from donors and
development partners income. However, distribution data from Kenya Medical Supplies
Agency (KEMSA) revealed that the Hospital received donations and program
commodities drugs amounting to Kshs.3,591,464 and Universal Health Coverage (UHC)
of Kshs.70,810 which were not disclosed in the financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Nil grants from donors and
development partners' income could not be confirmed.

5. Non-Disclosure of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position did not disclose property, plant and equipment
balance. However, review of Hospital records and physical verification revealed various
assets including land, buildings, motor vehicles, furniture, computers and equipment
which were not disclosed in the financial statements. Further, the ownership documents
for land where the Hospital is build were not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and ownership of Nil property, plant
and equipment balance could not be confirmed.

6. Unconfirmed lnventory Balance

The statements of financial position did not disclose any balances relating to
inventory/stock despite presence of undetermined value of inventory and there was no
evidence of conducting the annual stock take to confirm the quantities, value and status
of closing inventory balances as at 30 June,2022.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and valuation of the Nil inventory
balance could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospital
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audit of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Mafters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of llest Pokol
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Late Submission of Financial Statements

The Hospital Management submitted the financial statements for the year ended
30 June, 2022to the Office of the Auditor-General on 15 April, 2024, eighleen (18) months
afterthe deadline of 30 September,2022. This was contrary to Section 47(1) of the Public
Audit Act,2015 which requires the financial statements to be submitted to the
Auditor-General within three months after the end of the fiscal year to which the accounts
relate.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Weakness in the Procurement Function

Review of the procurement processes at the Hospital revealed that Management incurred
Medical and Clinical costs totalling Kshs.13,278,344. lncluded in this amount is
Kshs.857,055 paid out to various suppliers who were not in the list of registered suppliers.
Further, members appointed in the tender opening and evaluation committees were not
being rotated contrary to Section 46(4)(b) of Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act,
2015 that states that an evaluation committee shall consist of between three and five
members appointed on rotational basis. Further, Management did not provide bidders
with the standard procurement documents as per Section 58(1) of Public Procurement
and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which states that an accounting officer of a procuring entity
shall use standard procurement and asset disposal documents issued by the Authority in
all procurement and asset disposal proceedings.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and value for money on the
procurement of Kshs.857,055 could not be confirmed.

3. Discrepancy in Categorization and Licensing of the Hospital

Review of Kenya Gazette Notice No.786 of 4 February,2020 on categorization of
hospitals revealed that the facility was categorized as a level 3(a) Hospital. However,
interviews with Management and review of the financial statements presented for audit
indicated that the facility was a level 4 hospital.

Report of the Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of l{est Pokot
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4. Deficiencies in lmplementation of Universal Health Coverage (UHC)

Review of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered, equipment
used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed that the Hospital
did not meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines due
to medical staff deficits by seventy-one (71) staff requirements or 70o/o of the authorized
establishment.

ln addition, the hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in the
Health Policy Guidelines as detailed below;

Report of the Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of West Pokot
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Leve!4
Standard

Number
in

Hospital Variance Percentage
Staffing Requirement
Medical Officers 16 0 100

Anesthesiologists 0 2 100

General Surgeons 2 0 2 100

Gynecologists 2 0 2 100

Pediatricians 2 0 2 100

Radiologists 2 0 2 100
Registered Community Health
Nurses 75 30 45

60

Total 101 30 71 70

Service
Level4
Standard

Variance

lncubators (Newborn) 5 0 (5) 100
Cots 5 0 (5) 100

Resuscitaire in Theatre 1 0 (1) 100

Further, review of records revealed that the Hospital was not registered and licensed to
operate as a public medical institution by the Kenya Medical Practitioners and Dentists
Board contrary to Section 15(3) of Medical Practitioners and Dentists Act, 2019 which
requires the Council to issue to every approved health institution registered under the Act,
a certificate of registration in the prescribed form.

The Hospital could therefore, be missing on commensurate funding based on the
discrepancies in categorization as per the gazette notice and maybe operating without a
license.

ln the circumstances, the Hospital Management was in breach of the gazette notice.

16

2

Number in
Hospita!

Percentage



Service
Level4
Standard

Number in
Hospital

Variance Percentage

Resuscitaire in Labour
Ward

2 0 (2) 100

Functional ICU Beds 6 0 (6) 100
HDU Beds 6 0 (6) 100
Renal Unit with
Machines

Dialysis 5 0 (5) 100

Functional Operating
Theatres Maternity and
General

2 0 (2) 100

Bed Capacity 150 (e6) (e6)

Further, physical inspection carried out in the month of May, 2024 revealed that the
Hospital had inadequate facilities like washrooms, a laundry machinery and there was
inadequate water flow for daily operational activities.

These deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Acl, 2017 and imply that
accessing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health
care services, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the
Constitution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of service delivery to the public by the Hospital
could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Report of the Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 202 2 - County
Government of Ll/est Pokot
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Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.



Basis for Conclusion

1. Non-Compliance with Qualification Requirements for ln-Charge Medical
Practitioner Position

Review of personnel files revealed that the medical practitioner who was serving as the
ln-Charge of the Facility did not possess a Master's Degree in a health related field. This
was contrary to the provisions of the First Schedule of the Health Ac!2017 which requires
that the ln-charge of a Level 4 Hospital be a registered medical practitioner with a Master's
Degree in a health-related field.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of law and service delivery may be
negatively affected.

2. Lack of Risk Management Policy

Review of records revealed that the Hospital did not have in place, a Risk Management
Policy and did not perform formal risk assessments on key financial risk areas such as
revenue, expenditure and fraud. The Management was therefore in breach of Regulation
158(1) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015 that
requires the accounting officer to ensure that the County Government entity develops risk
management strategies, which include fraud prevention mechanism and a system of risk
management and internal control that builds robust business operations.

ln the circumstances, existence of effective risk management strategies and internal
controls in fraud prevention could not be confirmed.

3. Failure to Establish lnternal Audit Unit and Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Management had not established an audit committee
and internal audit function. This was contrary to Regulation 167(1) of the Public Finance
Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which requires County
Government entities to establish audit committees in accordance with prescribed
regulations to monitorthe entities governance process, accountability process and control
systems, offer objective advice on issues concerning risk, control, regulatory
requirements and governance.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls and risk management could
not be confirmed.

4. Non-Automation of Hospital Processes

Review of Hospital records and physical inspection revealed that Hospital operations
were not automated and records were susceptible to damages and loss. ln addition,
billing, drugs receipt and issuance were manual. The manual systems had an effect on
the turn-around time of hospital services which could affect service delivery.

ln the circumstances, the efficiency and effectiveness in provision of service delivery
could not be confirmed.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Lerel 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
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ln the circumstances, the existence of an effective mechanism to safeguard assets could
not be confirmed and Management was in breach of the regulations.

6. Expiry of Medical Supplies

The statement of financial position does not disclose any inventory balance. Review of
pharmaceuticals and non-pharmaceuticals inventory records revealed that thirty-seven
(37) drugs units of undetermined value had expired. ln addition, the stock cards used to
issue drugs to various departments in the Hospital did not indicate the batch number and
the expiry dates of the drugs. lt was therefore difficult to establish whether the issuance
of drugs was on First Expiry First Out (FEFO) basis.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on the management of
pharmaceutical and non-pharmaceutical could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
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5. Failure to Maintain Fixed Asset Register

The Hospital Management does not maintain fixed asset register to control its assets.
This is contrary to Regulation 136(1) of the Public Finance Management (County
Governments) Regulations,2015 which states that the Accounting Officer shall be
responsible for maintaining a register of assets under his or her control or possession as
prescribed by the relevant laws. ln addition, there was no evidence to show that the fund
has ever evaluated its assets to ascertain the correct market values.



ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-Genera!'s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in

compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended i0 June, 2022 - County
Government of ll/est Pokot
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As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also.

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a

a

O

a

a

a

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships

Report of the Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of l{est Pokot
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.



and
whe

r matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
applicable, related safeguards.

, CBS

Nai

09J ,2024

Auditor-General on Chepareria Sub-County Level 4 Hospitolfor the year ended j0 June, 2022 - County
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Cheparefia sub coun\t level 4 Hospital (ll/est Po/;tt: -rtuttty Governnrcnt)
Annud Report ond Finoncinl Statentents lor TIrc l'eui Entled 30 Jurrc 2022

XIII. statement of Financiar Performance for The year Ended 30 June 2022

n

The noles
TIre Hosp
behalfby:

Chairman

Board of Management

Head of Finance
ICPAK NO.27397 Medical Superintendent

Notes

set out on pages 8 to 34 forrn an integral part of th
ital's filancial staternents were approved by the Bo

e Annual fin4nciaf Statements
ara on &\{DDd and signcd on irs

Descri 2021n2

Kshs
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from the County Covernment 6 '7.485,786

In Kind Contributions from The County Government 80,161,680

87,647,466
Erpcnscs

MedicaVClinical costs tt 13,278,344
Employee costs I 7 t,707,230

IO 450,200
Board of Management Expenses

Repairs and rnaintenance il 308,731
Geleral expenses t2 1,595,278
Total erpenses 87,339,783
Other gains(losses)

Gain on disposal ofnon-cunent assets

Medical service conh acts Gain/losses

Inrpairment loss

Total othcr gains(Losses)

Net surplus for the year 307,683

rr

#K

7

Total Rcvenue

I



Chepareria sub coutt$t level 4 Hospital (lltcst Pokot Coutttlt Goyenunent)
Annual Report and Financial Statenrcnts for The l'ear Ended 30 June 2022

Description Notes 202rn2

Kshs

Asscts

Current essets

l3 175,483

t4 157,780Receivables From Exchange Transactions

Cash and cash equivalents

Totel Current Assets 333,263

Total assets 333.263

Current liabilitics

3, 103

Tolal Current Linbilities 3,103

Non-current liabilities

Total Non-current liabilities
'I'otal l,iabilitics

Net assets

Balance brought Forward 22,477

Revaluatiorr reservc

Accumulated surpluVDefi cit 307.683

Capital Fund

330,t60

III

IIII

I

I
I

XfV. Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2022

Total Net Assets nnd [,iebilities

bchalfby

'l'hc notes sct out orr pages 8 to 34 forrn an irrtcglal parl of tlre Annua.l l'illanclal Slatements
The Hospital's financial staternents wcrc approvcd by thc Board orr ?q \oqe.U and sign"O or, ,t,

6fu
arrlnan

Board of Management
Hcad of I,'irrancc
ICPAK No:27397

Mcdical Superintendent

')

Liabilities

liade And Other Payables l5

(3,103)

330,I60
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.l ttu rt und F-inntttiul Stutenrcnts or Thc l'eur Ended -itlh .lune 2022II

Stattnrcnt of ( lhan rs in Nrt Asstt lbr Thr Ycar llndtd J0 Junt 2022

Ihe n tcs set out on pagcs I to 34 tbmr an integral palt of the Arurual F lllallc Statumcrrts
't'he

srgne

Chai
Iloar

oepital's linanciul staterncnts were apptovcd by thc Boald on

on its behalfby:

llead of [:inance
l('P.{K No:27397

)*A .rnrl

Nlulical Superinttndent
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lxn
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{r it Iuly l.2l)21)
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s/1deficit) tbr the vearSurph
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{s dt Iunr J0, 2(l2l

ly l.' 2021-tt Ju
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J07.6E33u7.6n3nc 30. 21122\r Ju

I

Rrv:rluation
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surplus/I-lelicit

( xJ t :l

Fund

'l'otal
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Chepareriu suh couttty leyel I Hospitd (We,-t Pokol Coun4, Goyernnretr.lnnuil Rcp t)orl und Financiul ,ftuterrtenls r The l'eur Ended .ltlh June 2022

XVl. Statcrnr.nl ol'( ash Flons lbr l.hc Yrar lintlrd 3l),lune 2{f22

ri.a(' tih n0tv ll ont cl' :t lll ('ap t'ss
Rrccipts

Iranst'crs li.onr dre County Govgrnn1.,r,
6

7,485,786
In Kind Conrributions liorn The County Gover.nrnent

1,r0,161 ,6ti0'f otal Rrceipls

87.647,466

lrlt lrr cn ts

Medical/Clinical cosr.s
r_

13,278 ,344
Ernploye c costs t)

71.70r,2-10
Board of Managcntent Erperues li)

4-50,200
Repairs and nraintcnance

308,73 t
General expenses t)

-i95 278
l'otal Payrncnts

87.3J9 783Work ing capital

Ilerease in rc,ceivablcs

( I 57,780 )Incrr:asu irr Piryablcs
3, r0-1

Net cash flows fronr opereting activities t6
t53 0t)6

ri. ti:l(- IIsh \(l\\ r) tl \ \t' ln a (' t'l s

cPur lr ilsC r) '() itnp up v p n & nq nll bp c itss ts
ds ri. t'l) Ir) L.LJ c n hu C !l

') c r1 ll ,t iIn t'd uv l) CI l'l nq P
Acquisition t,l' iuvcstmcnts

Nc( cash flows usr:d in inlrsting activitics
ti.( hits rl s{r\\ nrt, nh- nil c n t'il ri (r t

f lrP rt) C dsU llt) ()h I 1) l'lgs

tr)cl)ilR ilt t'r) rrhr {) ilv s

{

I )r'scrip tion
2021t22

KshsNoft:
I I

n I I I

I 't I I I

I )I



it sub touttly letel I Hospitol (llesl Pokot Countl, Goternueut)
.l ttu R n und h'innnriul Stutefitenlslor The I'eor Ended 3dh June 2022

Capi I grants rcccivutl

ihc
Hospi
on its

s

rall'by:

Chepa

('hai tn
lhrrrd f Menagetttcnt

Hcad of !'in an cc

l(IPAK No:27397
Mrdical Supcrintcndcnt

sct out on pugcs f to J4 lbrnr un intcgral part o1'the Anntral Fin;pcial Scutcmcnts. The

financiat statements were approved by the Board ." !O\6Ef.L antl signcd

h flows uscd in linancing actiritirs\ e( c:ts

153.006ease/(tfucrersc) in cesh end caslt equivalentsNet

22,47'7
t3+; cash cquivalcnts at I JulyC':rsh

1.1
t 75.4113

and cash equivalrnts at 3(t,luly(lash
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Chepurerio sub county level I llo
.lrtttttrtl R

spitul (Wes, Pokot Coung, (ioternmen t)el)ort and Fiuutcittl State ntetrts.for The Year Ended Jdh June 2022
XVII. Notts To rhr Finencial Statcnrcnrs

l. Genrral Inlirrnralion

c'cparcria sub counry hospitar is csurbrishc. by antl dcri'cs its aur.ori
\\'est Pokot county Facility i,rprovcnrc,t tiurd (FI[-) Acr cuacretr o, l0
tvholly ou'netl by thc Govcrnnrcnt of Kcnya und is <Ionricilcd in Kcn
activity is provision oI'quality hcalth scrlices

$r and uccountability fionr
tl'Junc 

2019. Tlre crrtity is

ya. Thc cntity's principal

2. Statenrcnt Of Conrpliancr And Basis Of prcpar.ation

Thc t'inancial statemcnts have bcen prcpa ect on a historical cost basis except tbr Ihc measu'cment
at rc-valuctl amounts of ccrlain iterns of propcrty, p.rlant. and equipmcnt, marketablc sccur.itics ancl
Iinanc'ial insuumenls at fair valuc, irnpaircd assets at their estimated recovcrable amounts and
actua'ially dctcrmincd liabilitics at thci. pr€sc.t valuc. Thc prcparation of finirncial statcrncnts in
contbrmity with Intcrnational Public scctor Accounting Standards (IpsAS) allows thc usc of
cstimatcs and assurnptiorrs' It also t'cquircs managcmcnt to cxercisc jutlgcmcnt in tlc protess of
appl'ving thu CSCH acoouflting pc,licir:s. Thc a.cas inv,lving a highu.r tlcgrcc 

't. 
jutlgmcnt or

complcxity' o[ whct'c assumptions anrl estimatrs arc signiticant to t]rc tin;urcial statcmEnts. ar.c
tlisclosud in Notu rx Ths trnancial statcmens havc bcun pruparctl
Shillings, which is thc tunttional and r.eporting cur.r.cncy trf thc CSCH
Thc tinanuial statcmcnts havc bsun prcparutl in auc.rdanuu with thc pFM Act, ir,,J linclude unv
othcr opplicublc legislation), ancl Interaational Public Secror. Accourting Stantlards (IpSAS). The
auuounting pt-rliuics adoptctl havu bc,r r.o,sistcntly appricd to all thu ycars prcscnturl.

J. Adoption of New and Rcuiscrl Standards

IPSASB deflrrcd tlte;rpplication rlate ot'skrndarG lionr l't January 2022 ow.ing to covirl 19. T;is
rvas donc to providc cntirics with tinrc to eft'coti'cly apply the strrrdartls. Thc dcter.ral wus sct 1br 

.l ,t

January 2023.

iurtl prc5unlcLl In Kcnya
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Clteporerit .sub a't)U,tlt, leve J llo spitul (lt'e I Pokot Ctta tt0' G'o t'ernnlt ,l t).t
lrrttttul R nd ,uln c,tl t en/.$ The r h:,t J (fh ,te ,0

., ')h'i Slute .lo Yea del Jur

r. New an artrendcd stenderds and interpretalions in issue but not.yct effective in tlre year enrted
Jll ,lunc 022.

IPSAS 4I:

Fin:rncial

Lrsuumcrrts

Applicablc: l" January 2lf2J

Thc objcctivc of IPSAS 4l is to cstablish principlcs lbr thc l'inancial rcporting of
tinancial asscts and liatrilities that will prcseut rclcvant aud useful illbllation ro

uscrs of iinancial statrrn'nts tbr thcir .irtscssm.nt of thu amounrs. timing and

uncertaiuty ot an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l plovidcs uscl's of financial statcmcnts with nrolc uscl'ul inlbrmation than

IPSAS 29, Lry:

' Applying a single classification and measuronent model for financial assets

that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the objective

tbr which thc asscr is hcld.

' Applying a single forwardJooking expccted cr errit loss morlcl that

applicablc ro all tlnancial insrrumcnu subject to impairmcnr tcsting; and

ts

' Applying an improved hedge accounting moder that broadens the hedging

arlangcnlcr:ts in sr:opc ol' the guidance. Thc motlcl rlcvclops a strong link
bcrween an Entity's risk managernent strategies and the accounting treatment

tbr inshumcnts hcld as part of thr risk managcmcnt strutcgy.

IPSAS 42:

Social Bencli Thc objcctivc of'this Standard is to inrprovc thc relcvuncc, taithful rcprescnlatiyencss

and contparabilitv rr1'thc intbrnration rhat a reporting Enrity providcs in iLs linuncial

sti.llcrn€nts about social benctits. Thc intbrmurion providcrl shoukl hclp uscrs ot'thc
ti nancial statetrren Ls and gcneral-purposc ti nancial reporls asscss:

(a) The naturc ot'such social bencllts providcd by thc Entiry;

(b) Thc key t'eaturcs ol'thc operation ot'those social lrcnelir schemesl and

Applicable: I't January 202J

9
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Cheporeriu sub coutqt lsvsl J llospitul (West pokot Counfit Governnrent)
r Euded idh June 2022

lrtttuul R rt and h'ittttttcial Stalentettts .for The Yea

tinancial position and cash tlows

(c) The impact oftuch social benctirs provided on rhe En tity's linancial performance,

Amentlments to

Othcr IPSAS

rcsulting li.orn

IPSAS 4I,

Financial

Insfu umcnts

Arnundmcnh to IPSAS 5. t' uptratc thc guitrancc rclatcd t. thc cumrr.ncnts or
which wcrc inadvcrtcnrly omittcd whcn IpSAS 4l was

b) Arncndmcnts to IpSAS 30. r.cgiu.ding illustrativc exarnplcs on hctlging urtl
crctlit risk whiuh wcrr: inatrvcrtuntly c,rnittctl whun IpSAS 4r was issuutl.

c) Arncndmcnts to IpSAS 30, to up<Iatc thc guidiurcc lbr accounting tbr
tinanoial guarantuu r:.ntrasts which wcrc inadvurlr:ntry ,mittctl whcn IpSAS

rnst'u,renrs on initial adoprion of accruar basis IpSAS which were inadvcrrcntly

a.)

()ll

omitrcd whcn IPSAS -ll was issucd

updatc thc guidanoc ulassitying liniurcial

.{pplicabh: I st Januarl' 2023:

bolr owing costs

issuutl.

4 [ u.as issued.

Arnsndmcnts to IPSAS 33. to

Othcr

improveutcnts to

IPSAS

IPS 4s 22 Disclosure of Finoncial rttlornrarion abour the General Governnrcut
Scctor.

A,rcndnrcnts to rcf'cr to rhc ratcst Systcm or'Nationar Accounts lSNA 200g)

Now dclercs thc rcrnr conrposir.c social security Lrencrils us it is no rongcr tretincrl in

o IPSAS 2g: Financiar instrur,enf,s: Rec.gniti.n and Nleasurer,ent
standard no longer includcrl in the 202 l IpSAS handbook :rs it is now supcrscrlerl by
IPSAS 4l which is applicalrle tiom I't January 2023.

IPSAS

a IPS4S 39: Entplol'gs Benefits

lpplicuble t" Jnnuar_y'2023

IPS,{S 43

Thc srandard sch our thc principlcs ibr thc rccognition, rncasurcmcnr, prcscntution.
and disclosure ot'lcases. Thc objective is to ensure that ressces and ressors provirrc
rclcvant info.nation in a manncr rhat lhithlully rcpr.cscnts thosc tr.rulsactions, This
infb.rrration givcs a basis lbr u.sem ot'financial s*te,renls to assess the etlbor that
lcascs havc on thc tinancial position, iinancial pcrrbrrnancc and cashtlows

lppliruhle I" Jnnuary 202-i

ol'ln
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Chcpareria sub coutrty level -l llospitul (lilest Pokot Couttty Governntent)
luuuul Rep tnd ?'inancinl $talentents o

ll [.a

I

4 Su trr trr a Of Signilicent ^{rcounting Policies

rrcognition

Rcvenuc fronr non-erchenge transections

Translers li'onr other Govet'nnrent entities

a) Rcven

i)

R evenues

and recog

tiee tiom

asset u'il I

l'()tll lloll-exc

ow to the cntity and can be nrellsured reliabty

Entity.

Thc ncw standard rcquircs cntitics to rccognisc, mcasurc and prcscnt information on

riglrt ofuse assels and lcasc liabilities.

IPSAS 4.1:

Cun'cnt As

Hultl tbr Sa

and

Discontinuc

Opcratiorrs

J

Ittn-

Ets

c

.4pplicable l! January 2025

Thu Strrndard rcquilcs.

Asscts that rnr.:ct thu critcria to bc olassilictl as huld lbr salc to bc mr:asurcd at thu

lowcr ol calrying amount irnd lair valuc lcss crosts to scll and thc tlcprcciation od such

assots to ccasc antl:

Assets lhat mcct thc critcria to bc classifird tu hcld for salc to bc prcsrnted separatcly

in thc statcmcnt of linancial position antl thc rssults of dissontinucd rrpcrations to bc

presented sep:u'ately in the statcmcnt of t-inancial pcrtblmancc.

r The Yeor Endetl 3t/h Jutre 2022

adoption ofstandards
r'r- l' I r r -l -, 1/rT i /^1clrury or(l not cill'l_\,- aoopt any llcw ol'i]nlelloeo surloal'us ln urc ycar .L\rtl/,/.J

lurnge trirnsactions u'ith otlter govcrrrnren! entilics are measurcd at thir vulue

ized on obtaining control ol'the ir-sset (caslr, goods, sen,ices, and proper4') il'the transt'cr is

onditiorrs rnd it is probablc thlt the eoonomic Lrcnefits ol serlice potentiul rclated to tlrc

lr



Chepareriu sub tounqt letel I Hospitul
.4rttruul Report and Financiul Slatenents

(lUest Pokot Couttty Governnrent)

.for The Yeor Ewlerl \dh hure 2022

Revenue from erchange transections
Rcndcring of soriccs

Thc crrtity lucognizus rcvunuc from rundcring o1'sur.riuus by rr:tcruncc to thc stagc ot'eomplction whcn

lhc outcomc of the t'irnsaction can bc estimated reliably. Thc stage of completion is rncasurcd by

rcturcnec to labour hours incun'ud to datc as a pcrccntagu of total r:stirnatcd laboul hours. Whcrc thu

contract ol,ltcomc caunot be mcasured reliatrly, rcvenue is recognizcd only to thc extcnt that the cxpcllscs

incun'ud arc rucovcrablc.

Salc of goods

Rcvcnuc tl'orn thu salu of goods is rccognizcd whcn thu significant risks and rcwirr ds of ou,ncr.ship havu

bccn transfcrrcd to thc buycr, usually on dclivcry

of the goods and whcn the amount oi revcnue can be measured reliably. and it is probable rhat thc

uuonomis bcnctits or scrvicc potcntial iulsor..iatcd with thr: transaution will llow to thc cntity.

lntcrrst incomc

hturcst incomc is acurucd using thu cttlutivc yicld muthod. Thu cficctivc yicltl tlisuounts cstimatcd

luture cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Thc mcthod applics this yiuld to thc prinuipal outstantling to dr:tcrminu intl.rcst insomc tbr cach pcric,tl.

l)ividcnds

Dividsnds or sinrilar. distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the entity's right to

rcccive payments is csurblished.

Rentsl inconrc

Rcntal irrcotne aising liom opelating lcascs on irrvestmcnt propcnitss is accoun[ed lbt. orr a straight-line

basis ovcr thc luasc tcrms and includcd in rcvcnuc.

l2



riations wuru rnadc to thc approvcd budgut in accc,rdan,;c with spcuitic approvals liom

authoritics. Thcrc wcrc no additional appropriations. Thc entity's budget is prepared on a

to thc ar:tual inc'ornu antl crpcnditurc disrloscd in thu linancial statumcnts. Thu tilranuial

prrparcd on accrual basis using a classilication biucd on thc naturc of crpcnscs in thc

slJtcnlunt ot arrcial 1:crtbrrnanoL:, whcru.ls thc budgct is prcparcd on a cash b:rsis. Th,: atnoutts in thc

linlncial sta cnts wcrc rcsast ti'onr thc accrual basis to thc r.:ash basis and rcclassificd by prcscntation to

bu on thc sarn basis as thc approvcd budgct.

ol'budgct rud actual amounts, prcpiu'cd on a colnpalablc basis to thc approvcd budgct is

in thc statement of comparisorr of budgct and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis

A compatiso

then prcsente

ditlcrcnuc..rtl stmcnts to arnr)uflts in thc lin:urcial staturncnts arc alsc, madc lbr ditlurcnccs in thu tbrmats

iurd classific on st hcmes adoptcd tbr the prcscntation of the tinuncial statemcnts and thc aPLiroved

budgut. A sta unt to rr.:concilc thc actual amounts on a uomparablu bruis includcd in thc statcmcnt ol

compalrson o budget and actual amounts and the actuals as Lrcr the stirtencnt of tinancial pcrlbrmancc

has bccrt prc tcd undur sur:tiort -Y1/ trf thcss linancial statcrrrints

c) 'l'ar

Sa ltr l:rr/ \' luc Arklerl 'l'ar

Chepurerilt ub courrty level I Hospitul (West Po*ot County Goverdntent)
lnttuul R onI h'ituurciul Stalemeuts r The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

nrirtion

rlgct tbr Fy 2021-2022 was approvcd by Boarrt on l2rH April 2021. Subscqucnt rcvisions

asscB atc rocognizcd nct ot'thc irnlount ol'salcs tax, €xocP!:

thc salcs trur incurcd on a purchasc of asscts or scrviccs is not rccovcrablc tiom thc

n authcrlity. in which casu, thc salcs tir.x is rccogrrizcd as part of thc cost oi auquisition of

sct or as pal't ot'thc cxpcnsc itcm, as applieablc

i Whcr rcceivables anrl payables arc surted *'ith the amounl ol'salcs tar includcd. Tltc nct amounl

cs tax recovcrablc fionr, or payable to, lhc laxation authority is includcd as patt ot'

ablcs or payablcs in the statenren! ot'tinancial posirion.

ofs
t €cel

d) lnr

) Budget in
Thc original

t'r' additional

thc appropria

difll'r'urrt basi

statcmc-nls iu'

Expenscs an

) Whc

taxat

thc a

lnvustmcnt pr

includus the

inculcd if th

rnvustrnsnt p

Inv tsslrncnt pr

t' t' acquisititrn

ent propcrty

rtics aru mcasulud initially at cost, including tt'ansaction uosts. Thc carrying amount

laccmcnt cost of componcnts ol' an uxisting invustmcnt ploprlly at tho tirne that cost is

lccognition critcria arc mct and cxcludcs thr costs ol day-to-day maintcnancc of iur

criy.

crty acquircd through a non-exchange tr:msaction is rncasulcd at is fair value at tht datc

ubsuquunt to initial rcoognition, invustmcnt prtpcrtics arc rncasurctl using thu cost mttdcl
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over a period ot'xx'r vcars. Jnvestnten[ properties arc dcrecognized eithcr rvlren tSey
ol'or whcn thc i.vcstnrent propcrly is pcr.nrancntly u,i(hdrarvn tionr use und no fulurc

econonric benctit or sett'ice grtcntial is expccted liom its rlisposal. The rlillbrence bctween thc nct
disposal procceds anrl thc carrying amount ot the asset is rccognizcd in thc surplus or dcticit in tlrc pcriotl
ot'de-recognition' Transtbts are ntade to or ti'onr investmcnt property onlv when t6ere is a changc in usc.

e) Property, plant and equipment

All propurty' plant and cquiprncnt arc statutr at c'st lcss accurnuratuJ tl:prcciat.it-rn and irnpairmcnt losscs.
cost includes cxpenditut'c that is directly attributablc to the acquisition ol'rhe irerns. when signiticant
parts of propurty' plant antl cquiprncnt arc rcquiruJ to bc rcplaoctl at inturvals, thc cntity rcr;.gnizes such
patts

u individual asscts with spccitic uscti:l livr:s antl dcpruciatcs thsm aucordingly. Likcwisc, whun a major
inspcction is pcrlbrmcd' its cost is rccognizcd in thc carrying amount of thc plant antl cquip,rcnt as a
rcplacurncnt if thc rucognition critcria alc satislir:tl. All othcl rcpair. antl maintunancc costs arc rccognizud
in surplus or dclicit as incurcd. whcrc an assct is acquircd in a non-cxchzurgc transaction for nil or
no,rinal consideration thc assct is initiary nrcauur.cd at its tair.valuc.

f) l,casrs

Financc lcascs at'c lcascs that translcr substantially thc cntirc risks and bcncliu incidcntal to owncrship of
thu luascd itcm to thc Entity' Assuts hcltl undcl a tinancs luasu in'u oapitalizctl at thu conuuunccmcnt ol-thu
lcasc at th'j lair valuu r-r1'rhs lc;rr;cd propr;r1y or, il'lowcr, at thu prcscnt valuc of thc lirtur.c minimurn lcasc
payments' The Entity also lccognizes the :u;soc,iaterJ lear;e liabiliry at the rnception o('the lease. The
liability rco.gnizctl is mr:asurutl as thc prcscnt valuu of thc luturu minirnum luasc pavnrcnts at initial
recognttlon

Subscqucnt to initial rcctgnition,, lcasc paymunts arc apportioncrl bctwusn llnancc chargcs anrl rsductit,n
of thc lease liability so as to achievc a c,onstant rate of interest on thc rcmaining balancc of thc liability.
Finanuc chargcs arc rcuognizcrl as linanuc costs in surplus or dcliuit.
An asset hcld undcr a linancc lcasc is <Iepreciatetl over the usetul lil'e of the asset. Howcver. if there is no
rciuortablc ccrtainty that thc Errtity will obtain ou,nc'rship of thc aisut by ths und 6f thu luasu tcrm. thc
assct is dcpreciatcd over tlc shorlcl of the cstimarcd uscl'ul litc of thc asse! and the lease ter,r.
opcrating lcascs arc lcascs that tlo not tr ansl'ur substantially all thc risks and 6cnclits incidr:ntal to
orv,ership of the lcased ilenr to the ELrtity. opcrating lease paymcrts ar.c l.ecogrnized as au operating
uxpcnsu in surplus or dclicit on a straight-linu basis ovcr.thc lcirsc tr:rm.

t-l
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g) Intang le assrts

lntangible

acquirecl in

tlate of the

act'umulat

oxcludine

delicit in th

cu acquil'cd separalelY ru'e initially recognized aL cost. Tlrc cost of intangiblc asscts

non-cxchangr h'ansaction is thcir tair valuc at thc

cxchaugc. Follorving initial rccognition, iutangiblc asscts are cauicd at cost less any

amortization and acc,umulatcd impairment losscs. Internally generatcd intangible assets,

italized rlcvelopurcnt cost.s, arc not capitalizctl aud expeudiru'c is lcllccterl in surplus or

pcriod in rvhich the expenditur'e is incurled. Thc uscfirl lit'e of thc intangible asscrs is

ussessed as ther linite or indetinitc

lr ) Reseer' and developruent coslr

perNcs rcscat'ch costs as ircun'cd. Devclopmcnt cosLs on an individual projcct ar.eThc Errtity

rccognizctl intangiblc asscts whcn thc Entity can dcrnonstu.atu

).The rc rrical f easibility of cornpleting thc asset so that the isset rvill bc available tbr. use or salc

F Is inrc tion to contplctc and its ubility to use or sell the asset

i Thc a" will generate lirturc cconomic benefits or service potcrrtial

DThc av

D Thc atr

Following in

and accurnul

and the asset

lability ot'resourucs to complctc tlrc asscl

lW to mcasurc lcliably thc expenditur-e duling devclopment

ial rccognition ot'an asset, the asset is carlicd at cost lcss any accunrulalctl anroftizalion

Ied irnpairmcnt losses. Anrortization o1'thc asset begins when developrrrcnc is completc

s available tbr use. [c is amortizcd over lhe periotl of'expectcd fururc bcnetir. During the

pcriod of d eloprrtent, thc asset is restcd fbr impairnrcnt annually rvith any inrpairment losses

rccognizcd i nrediatcly in surplus or dcticit

i) Financi instl.U lrcnts

Financial ass s

I n itial rr:ro ition and rnr s lr rerncn t

Financial as within thc 5s1rpc ol'IPSAS 29 Finanoial lnshumcnts: Rucognition and Mcasurcmunt a1u

classit'ied as tinancial assels at iair valuc ttu'ough surplus ol deticit. loans and rcceivatrles, held-ro-

nratunty lnv c nts

c,r' al aiLa['rlr- r-sale t-tnanoial assets. as appropriate. The Entity determincs rhe classiticarion of its

at initial rcuognition.tiniurcial ass

(l
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Loans and receivables

Loans and rcccivables arc nondcrivative lirrancial asscts rvith tixcd or detcrnrinablc paymcnts lhat arc

not quotcd in an active nrarket. Attcr initial nreasu!'enlcnt, such tinancial assets are subscqucntly

nrcasurctl ut unronizcd cost using thc cflictivc intcr cst nrcthod, lcss inrpairmcnt. Anrortizcd cost is

calculatetl by urking into account any rtiscount or plenriunr on acquisition and ltes or cosL\ that arc an

integral part ot thc ctl'ective intcrcst rutc. Losses urising lionr inrpairmcnt arc rccognizcd in thc surplus

or deticit.

Held-tunraturity

Non-dcrivative financial asscls rvith tixcd or rlctcrminablc paynlenLs and lixcd mlturities are classitied

us hcld to nrarurity *'hcn lhc Entity has the positivc

intcntion and ability to hold it to rnaturity. Attcr initial rne&sut'entent, hctd-to-uraturity invcstrnenLs are

rrrcasurcd al anrortizcd cost using rhe cfl'cctivc intcrest method, less impairnrenr. Amortized cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or prenriunr on ucquisition and t'ees or cosLs that ale an

intcgral part ot'thc ctf'ectivc intercst ratc. The losses arising tiom inrpairmcnt are lccognizcd in surplus

or dcticit.

lmpairnrent of hnencial esscts

The Entity assessEs at each rcporting date whcthcr there is objective evidencc tlrat a financial asset or

an entity ot'tinancial assets is impaircd. A tinancial assct or an cntity of tinancial aiscs is dcemed to be

inrpaircd it, and only itl there is objcctivc evidence ot' inrpairrrtcnt as a rcsult ot'one or rnore evcnts tltat

Irave occurrert after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has

an inrpar-:t on the estirnated future cash llows ot'the tinancial asset or thc cntity ol't'inancial assets that

can be rcliably cstinrated. Evidencc ot'impaitnrcnt may includc the tbllowing indicators:

) The debtors ol an entity ot'debtors arc cxpcliencing signilicant tinancial dilliculty

D Dctault or dclinqucncl, in iutcrcst or principal pa).menls

D Thc probability that debtols *'ill cntcr bankruptcy or other linancial reorganization

D Otrscrlable data irrdicatcs a mcasurable dccrcasc in cstirlated turulc cash tlows (e.g. changcs iu

al'rrars or economic conditions that con'elate with dct'auls)

['inancial liabilitirs

lnitial rrcognition and mrasurcnrrnt

l(;



Cheporerio ub counry
lttttttol R tnd F'irut

Financial li

tlrrough su

ulassilicatio

All ti nurrci

plus dircctl

Loans and orrowing
i\ lter initial

cost uslng

liabilities ar

Amortizurl

costs that a

i) lnv Irllirs

hrvcntory i
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ilities within thc scopc ot' IPSAS 29 arc classilicd as tinancial liabilitics at tlir value

Ius or dcticit ol loans and borrorvingst us appropriatc. Thc Entity dctcrnrines thc

of its linancial liabititics at initirl rccognition.

liabilities are recognizcd initiully at lair valuc and, in dle r;asc ot'loarrs und borrorvings,

attri bumble transaction sosts.

t'ecognition. intcrest-bearing loans and bonowings alc subsequcntly rncasured at ruuortized

c clllctivu intcrcst mcthod. Gains and losscs arc rucognizcd in surplus or dclicit wh,in dtc

dcrecognized as well as thlough the ctt'eotive interest r.nethod amortization process.

st is oalr:ulatud by taking into account any tliscount or prcmium on acquisition iurtl lucs or

an intcgral part of thc clll'r:tivc inl.crcst ratc.

mcastu ed ar cost upon initial recogrrition. To the cxtcnt that irrvcntory was receivcd tll'ough

e lransactions (tbr no cost or tbr a nonrirral cost), Ihc cost of thc invcnloty is its fuir valuc at

d in bringing cach product to its prcscnt location and conditions iuc accountcd tbr a.s

aterials: purchasc cost using thc wcighted avcragc cost ntcthod

ed goods and work in progrcss: cost of direct rnaterials anrl labour, and a plopoflion ol

turing ovcrhcads basctl on thc nc)rmal opcrating uapar:ity, but c-rcluding bc,rrowing ct sts

cr irritial recogrrition, inverrtorY is mcasured at the lowcr cost and rTct rcalizatrle value.

thc cxlerrt lhat a class ol invcntory is distrilrutcd or deploycd xt no chargc or lbr a notrrinal

class o{' invcntory is mcasured at thc lorvcl ctrsl artd the currcnt rcplaccmetrt cost.N ct

lue is thc cstillratcd sclling pricc in thc ordinary cours€ ot'opctutions. lcsr tltc cstirrratcd

plction and the cstimatcd cosls rl€cessary to nrake the salc, exchange, or distribution

arc rccognizcd us an expcnse wltcn dcploycd tbr utilization or consunlption in the ordinaly

re recognizcd whcn the Entity has a prcsent obligation llcgal ol constructivc) as a t'csult ot'a

t is probable that an outllow ol'r'esoulccs embodying ecououtic berrcfits or scrvicc potcrrtial

ired to scttle thc obligation and a rcliablc cstinrule can Lrc madc of thc anrount of thc

t7



Chepureriu
.lttuuul Repo

suh county level I llospital (West Pokol Coutttlt Governruent)
rt nntl Financial Statentents.for The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Whcre thc Entity expecs sonrc or all ot'a provision to bc rcinrburscd, tbr examplc, under an insut'ancc

conlrac!, thc tcinrburscnrent is rccogrrizcd us a scpar'3te assct only rvhcn thc rcinrbursenrcnt is virtually

cerlain.

Thc expense relating to any provision is prcscntcd in thc sultcmcnt of hnancial pcrtbrmancc nct of any
re imburscmcnt.
Contingrnt liabilitics

Thc Eutity docs not rccognize a contingcrt liability, but discloscs dctails of any contingencics in tltc

notes to the t-rnancial statcments. unless thc possibility oi'an outtlow of resources embodying economic

bcnefits or scn,icc potcntial is remotc.

Contingrnt asscts

The Entity docs not rcco-snizc a contingcnt asscl, but discloscs dctails ot'a possiblc assct whosc

cxistence is contiugcnt on tltc occun'cllce ol' non-occult'cltce ol'one or more turccrtairt luttuc cvenLs not

wholly within the conh'ol of'thc Entity in the notcs to tlrc linancial statcurcnts. Contingcnt assct.s are

assessed contillually to cnsul'c that devclopmellts are appropriarely rcflccted in the lirrancial statcmeuG.

Il'it has trecome virtually certain that an inflow ot'cconomic bcnctiu or sovicc potdntial will atisc and

the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the

tinancial statcmcrrts ol'thc pcriod in which the changc occurs.

k) Naturc end purposr of resertes

The Entity crcates and rnaintains rcscrvds in tcrms ol'specitic rcquircnrcnts. I.EnriD, to slate lhe

resetnes nnintoined atd apprcpriate policies adopled.)

l) Changr:s in rccounting policics and rstimetcs

Thc Entity lccognizcs thc efttcts of charrgcs in accountirrg policv retrospcctivcly. The effects of chartgcs

in accounting policy arc applicd prospcctivcly il'rctr ospectivc application i" inrptactical.

nr) Employec brnrfits

Rctircntcnt bcnclit plens

Thc Entity plovid€s retircment bcrrcl-rts tbr iu crnployecs irrrd rlilcctors. Dctincd couhihtttion plans arc

post-crnployn'rcnt bcnctit plans urrdcr which an cntrtv pays tixcd contributiorrs into a scpalalc entity 1u

fund), rutd rvill havc no legal or consh'uctivc obligation to pay lurthcr contributions if the Iurrd docs ttot

hold sutlicicnt asscts to pay ull cnrployec benctits lclating to en'rploycc setvice itr thc

currcnt and prior periods. Thc contributions to tirnd obligations tbr tlte paymcnt ol' retircmcnt bcnctits

ure clratgcd against inconrc in thc ycar in rl'hioh thcy bcconre pryablc. Dct'rncd benetit plans are post-

enrploynrcnt l-:enefit plans othcr than dclincd-corrtribution plans. Thc dctincd bcnctit funds arc

acturrially valued tri-annually on the projccted unit credit nrelhod busis. Dcticits idcntiticd are rccovcred

Iti
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crrlploycls.

l'orrigr cu

anslng ti ont tc

which thcy

in which th

um paynlents or incrcascd lirhrre contl'ibutions on a proportional basis to all participating
conlribulio.s and runrp sunr paymcn* rcrlucc thc post-crrrp roynlcnt bcn€rit otrrigacion.

lc

tncl' transactions
Transaction in lbrcign currcncius aru initiany acc.untcd ftrr at thc ruring raru ofcxohangc .n thc tlatc ol
the tlansacti Trade creditors or dcbtofs tlenotninated in tbreign cuuency arc reported at thc statc,rent

ition rcporting r'latc by applying thc uxchangc ratu on that rlatc. Exuhangu tliucrcnccs
settlenlent of creditors. or tiom ttte rcporting ol'crcditors a[ rates diu'erent liorn chosc ar

ot'tinancial US

n) Borro

ansc.

ng costs

Borrowing c sts a'c capitalizcd against qualiiying asscts as palt of propclry, plant and cquipmcnr.Such

cru initially rccordctl during thu pcriotl, aru rccognizcrl as inuomu or c-xpcnsus in rhc pcriotl

ts a'c capitalizurl ovcr thc pcriod rluling whieh thc assr:t is bcing aequircd or construutc4
s havc bccn incun'cd. capiralization ccascs whcn construction of thc iusct is complctc
ing costs arr; char.gcd to thc statcrncnt of tinancial pcrformancu.

pa rti rs

borrowing u

and bonowi

F-urthcr bono

o) Rclat

Thr: Ertity rc
jointly, or to

G a rclatcd party as a pL:tson or an untity with thc ability to cxcrt contr.ol inr.lividually or
crcisc signilicanr intlucncc ovcr thc Entitv, or vicc vcrsa. Mcmbcrs of kcy managcmcnt

arc rcgardcd a rclatcd partics ,tl cornprisc thu dircctors, thc cEo/principal ancl sunior managcrs

P) S. ur c()nrcsston arrangcnrrnts

Thc Entity an yscs all iuipctts of sct"vicc conccssion anangcmcnts that it cntcrs into in detcrmining thc
upploprlate a ountrng trcaurfirt. aud disclosu.c rcquircmcuts. [n particular., wherc a privatc party
r,ontributcs an sct to thu arrangcmcnt thc Entity rccognizes that assct whcn, and only when, it conh.ols
or rcgulatcs scl'vlces Thc operator rnust provide togcther with the ass€t. to whom it must provide
them, and at hat price. In the case of assets other than 'whole-ot:life assets, rt controls, through
owncrship. cticial cntitlcmeut or othcnpisc - any signilicatrt rcsidual inrcrest in thc assct at thc end
of the arrang ent' Any assets so recognized at'e measu'ed at their lair value. To thc cxtent that an assct
has [recn rec izc,d, the Entity also recognizcs a colt.esponding liabilit-v, adjusrcd by a cas]t
consideration d or rrcrived

('ash and cash

(lash and cash

equivalcnts

quivalents cornplise cash on hantl anrl cash aI bank, short-term dcposits on call ar<j
ighly liquid in cstmerlts with alr or-iginal marurity ol thrcc months or less. which are readily couverriblc

rts of cash and are subjcct to insigrifica,r risk of changcs in 
'arue. 

Bank accounl
o huowu ano
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balances include anrounts lreld at the Ccnh'al Bank ol'Kcnya antl uL various conrmercial banks at thc entl

ot-thc finarrciul Vear. For thc put'poscs ot'tltcsc linurrcial slillenlcnts, caslt and c:rsh cquivulents olso

include short lcrm caslr inrpress and advances to authorise public otliccrs anrVor institutions u'hich '"r'ere

no! surlcndcrcd or accounted lbr ur thc cnd otthc tinancial ycar.

q) Comperntive ligures

Whctc ncccssary conrpat'ativc tigurcs fbl thc previous linancial ycur ltavc been antcnded or rccontigurcd

to contbrnr to thc required changes in presentation.

r) Subsequent evenls

Thcrc have been no cvcnts subscqucnt to thc linancial ye:r end u'ith a significant inrpact on the financial

statcnr€nls tbr the ycar cndcd Junc 30, 2022.

5. Significent .tudgnrents end Sources of Estinratirln I Incerteinty

Thc prcparation ol'thu Entity's tinancial statsmcnts in contbrmity with IPSAS rcquircs mnnagctncnt to

make judgnrents. estimates and assumptions that attcct the lcportcd amounc of revenues. expcnscs,

asscts antl liabilitics, and thu disclosurc of r;ontingcnt tiabilitics, at thc cntl of thu rcporting puriod.

However, uncertainty about thesc assumptions nnd rstimates could l'esult in outcomes that lequile a

matcrial adjustmcnt to thu uar'rying arnount ol'thu assct or liability altcutcd in futurs pcrioG.

Estirnatcs and essunlptions

The key assurnptiolls concelnirrg thc t'utule and olhcl key sourccs of cstiruatiorr uucertairrty at thc

rcpolting datc, that have a signiticant risk of causing a material adjustmenr to thc canying amounts of

asscts and liabilitics within the ncxt linancial ycar', arc described t'clow. Thc Entity trascd its

assumptions and cstimatcs on paruncl€ls available whcn the corrsolidatcd liuarrcial slatcmcrlts wcre

prcpareil. Horvcvcr, existing circumstanocs and assumptions about luture devclopmcnts may changc duc

to narket changes or circurnstanccs arising bcyond thc control of thc Entity. Such changcs at'c rcilectcd

in thc assumptions whcn they occur.( IPSAS I .140)

Usrlul livcs end rrsidual valucs

Thc uscful livcs and rcsidual valucs of assels arc asscssed using thc lbllowing indicatols to infbrtn

potential futurc use and valuc li'om disposal:

ploccsscs.

l0
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were raised and management detennined an estimate based on the information available.
disclosure ofthese estirnates ofprovisions is included in Note xxx.

are measured at the management's best estirnate of the expenditure required to settle the
at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is materiar.

Provisi

2t
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Annutl Reporl and Fitoncial Stotements for The l'ear Ended
Chepareria sub couttty level 4 llospinl (l;l/c.st Pohot County Governntent)

3dt' lune 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements

fl Transfers From The Coun Oovernnrcnt

6(b). Transfcrs from The County Governrnent

7. ln Kind Contributions from The C-ountr' (iovcrnmcnt

Unconditional granh
Lrvcl 4 grants 7,485,?86

Total County Government grants and subsidies 7,485,786

,,\nl

West pokot County Govenlment
7.485.786

Total 7,485,786

Description 202U22

KShs

Salaries and wages
7l .707 ,230

Pharmaceutical and Non-Pharmaceutical
Suppligs 8,454.450

Total grants in kind
80,I6l,680

22

Descriptlon 2021t22

KShs

Nrme of the Entity scnding thc
grr$t

Amount
deferred

under
tleferrerl
income

KShs

A nrount
recognised
in capital

fund.

Total grant
income

during lhe
yea r

I(Shs KSlrs



Chepurerfut ub t ou,l4' leyel I llospilu (Wes I Pokot Cou n4' Goternntetrl)
lnnuul Rel) ntl Finunc S/,,lente ,r/.t o The r En d J th Ju ,te ) .,itl Yeo rle,' 2t)

8. NIe Iurst

9. i,lnp oyrc ('0sls

l ll. Bo of ll{anagcnrrnt Erprnscs

I l. Rc And \{aintcnencc

12. (]rn al l.rpcnsts

Laboratory lrenricnls and rcugcnts _i4_i,{J()0

@ Non-Phalnraccuti c:rls t,284,554
Pharrnaceu r-,rl supplics I t,448.790
'l'otal rnrdi l/ clinical costs t3.27tJ,3J4

Salaries, all enses-P&P antl contrrtc<l 69,107,23U
wages lbr c uals 2,60u,u00

E@ ts 71,707.230

Sittin.q allow allc€ -+-50,2(X)

Tolal -150,2{t0

Propefiy- hr rperty and N{achinery

Mt,tor vchir;l uxpunscs 99,925
Main tcnance of Building and srations 208,906
'l'otal repair and nreintenancr 3tftt,73 t

A dvertising d publicity expenses r00,000

@

l_3

212U22scriptiofr

Dcscri[tion 2[2U22

K.5hs

2021i22.........r...--r

KShs

I )tscrilr tiorr 2t)2U22

KShr

I

l)tscription 202U22

KShr



Catering expenses

13. (a).Cesh .{nd Cnsh Equivelrnts

l3 b . Drtailcd {nel sis of Cash and Cash u

14. Rcctivehles Frtltl Exchan e Trensaclions

2l ir,-j00

uir alcnts

29-5,_300Sanitary and cluaning matcrials

.l I9,20t)I:ood and ration

142, I 70(icncral olliur supplirs

21,314Bank chalgcs

l07.tr0t)Daily Suhsistancc allorvancc

195,994lircl and lubrir;artts

196.000purchasc of lurniturc

I,595,'278Total Genrral Expcnscs

t7.5.1E3Culrcnt accounts

t 75.483'l'otal rash and taslt equivalents

J) ('urrcnt account

l().J46t267071251Keuya Corutnelcial lratili

r 5.5.0-3 7
1t4492-i754Kenyu Commcrcia[ lrank

r 75.4n3
'l'ot al

t 57,7Et)Mcdical scrviscs rccuivablcs

Lcss: irnpairmcnt allowancc
t 57,780'l'otal recrivablts

l-l

Cheparerit sub county level I Hospitul (West Po*ot County Govrnnent)
.4nnuul Report and Financiol Surcitents.lbr The Yeor Endetl 3dh June 2022

Dcscrip tion
KShs

202U22

lccount numbrr I KShs
l)cscription 2tl2a/22

2$2112/

KShs



Clteparcriu sub county leyel I Hospitul (llest Pokot County Goverament)
4nnuul R un d F' iruut c ittl S tut e nrc n ts l)r The Yeu Endel 3dh June 2022

| 5. 'I'radc nd Othcl Palablcs

16. c Gcncrated from Opcrations

Itnp111p1n6111

I 6. 'I'radt 0thrr Payablcs

Tradc payaL Ies 3.1 03
Emplovcc d Jcs

'fhird-party paynrcnts ( uttre n i t te d payroll deductions)
Audit fce

Doctors'fee

Tolal trade end olher payablrs 3.103

WE thc vear bcforc tar 307.6n3
I NEl r:

M
Non-c:ulr g nls rcccivcd

rAfiEilII scs ou disposal ot' asscts

rGr.ltflilIff|! to provtstons

tx!ilEtdll[ to nnpairltent allorvancc
lv\.orking f:ipitaf adjustnrenls 307,683

vcntol'vIncrcasc ini[
Incrcasc in eivahlcs ( t -s7,780)
ItlES:tEt! ferred income

ta!tr+rEitr5 yaLrlcs 3.103
Incr'case in ynlenLs received in advance

Nrt cash lloF fr0rn 0perating activitirs l53.ll0(r

Tradc payablc s 3, 103

Employee dut

Third-party pryments (tnreuitted pavroll deductiorts)
Aurlit l'ee

Doctors' fee
'l'otrrl tradc ar rd othrr payablrs 3,I 03.

EMT@

@E
EE@c@

25

llt'ricrintiorl I l"t'zott-2122
KShs

I t-1'202t-2022
liShs

l)csrription

2021122



Chepureria sub tounty level
.lnnrtol Report aud Financiol

9. Financial Risk l\Ianagenrent

The entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and efl'ects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management prograrnme

lbcuses on thc uuprctlictability oI'charrges in the business cnvitotlmcttt and sccks to minimise thc

porcntial advcrse ctltct of sur:h risks on its pcrtbrmancc by sctting acccptablc Icvcls of risk. The

company docs uor hcdge any risks aud has in placc policics to €nsure that credit is only cxtcndcd to

customers rvith an estalrlishcd crerlir history.

The entity's tjnancial risk management objectives andpolicies are detailed below:

(i) Crcdit risk

Thc cntitv has cxposruc ro crcdit risk, which is thc risk that a counterparty will lre urrablc to pay

unlounts in full rvhcn duc. Crcdit lisk ariscs liorrr cash urrd cush cquivalents, and dcposits with

banks, as r,l'ell as tradc arrd olhcr reccivablcs and availablc-tbr-salc lurancial investmctlts.

Marrugcnren! osscsses thc ot'cdit quality ol'cuch ouslonr6r', taking into account its tinanoial posirion,

past cxpcrience and other lirctors. lndividual risk hmit-s are set based on intcmal or cxtculal

ltss€ssmcnt in accordance with linria sct by thc dircctot's. Tltc untouns prcscrrtcd irr tc statcnrctrt

oI't-rnarrcial position are net of allowances for doubtful recervables, estimated by the company's

nlanagcntcnt basetl orr prior cxpcricncc and thcir asscssnlcn! ot'tltc cul'rctrt cconotrric ctrvirotrnrettt.

The canyiug amoullt of financial asscts rccordcd in thc linancial statcm€uts reprcserrting thc

entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral

olruirrcd is nradc up as lbllows:

Thc customcrs undcr thc tully perlbnning catcgory arc paying their debu as thcy conlirlue tradirlg.

Thc credit risk associatcd with rhcsc rcccivablcs is minimal and the allorvancc tbr unoollcctible

amounls that rhe company has recognriscd irr the tiuaucial stalcmcrlts is corr.sidcrcd adequate to

covcl arly potcntially irccovcralrlc antounts. Thc cntity has signiticant conccnh'ation ofcrcdit lisk

on amounls due

Thc board ot' managcnlent sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down

palamctcrs within which thc various aspccts ol'crcdit risk mautagcmeut ale opcrated.

(ii) Liquidity risk manegcmcnt

Ultirnatc rcsponsibility lbr liquidiry risk managerncnt rcsts *'ith the hospital's board of

nlanagcnrcnt rvho h:rvc built an applopriatc liquidit-v risk nrirrragenrctrt lianrework tbr thc

management of the entity's short, medium and long-tcrm funding amd liquidiry manag€ment

rcquilcnrenrs. Thc enrity manag€s liquidity risk through continuous monitoring ol' tbrccasts and

actual cash tlows.

4 Hospital (lle
Stulelaentr lbt

sl Pokol Coun1, Government)
The Yetr Entled 3th June 2022
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('h eriu sub ou,r[' level 4 llospital (llesl Pokot County Goterament)
l nn unl rl ,tI Financiol StutententsJbr The Yetr Ended 3dh June 2022

Itrrv rcprcsents cash llows payable by thc conrpany under non-dclivative tinancial

thcil rcnrairring contractual rrruluriries at thc rcpoltine datc. The anrouns disclosctl

arc the contrachral untliscounlcd cash florvs. Balances duc u'ithin l2 months cqual

ng bulunccs, as the inrpact ot'discounting is not signiticant.

Nlarkct risk

thc entit

tal ha-s put irt plar;c an intcrnal audit t'unction to assist it in asscssing thc risk laccd by

on an ongoing basis, evaluate u.nd test. chc rlcsign anrl efl'ectileness ot' its internal

accourttr antl opcrational controls. Markct risk is thc risk arising li'om changcs in nrarkct

h as intcrest rirte, equity prices and tbre ign exchangc rates which u'ill utl'ect the

ome or the value ol its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk

The co

managcm

whilc opt

nt is to nranage and control ntarkct risk cxposurcs u'ithin acceptablc paranretcr.s.

nrising thc rc[urn. Overall rcsponsibility lbr nranuging nrarkct risk rcsts rvirh rhc Audit

tnd Risk nnagcnlcnt Comnrittcc.

pany's Finance Departrnent is responsible lbr the dwelopment of detailed risk

ntllnrrg rcnt policies (subjcct to revieu'and appror,al by Auttit and Risk Managcment

Cortrm ttec) und tbr the tlay-to-day implcmcntation ol'thosc policies. There lras Lrecn no

to the entity's exposure to market risks or the way it manages and me:rsurcs the riskchang

a)
Thr: r:ntitv

Forrign currcncv risk
transactional cur-r'cncy uxposrx cs. Such crposurc ariscs through pur-chascs ol'goods

and scrlicc that arc donc in currcncics othcr than thc local currcnuy. Invoiccs dcnorninatcd in

nuics arc paid attcr 30 tlays tiom thc tlatc of thc invcticc ancl convcrsion at thu tirnc oflbrcign c

paymcnt is onc using thc prcvailing cxchangc ratc. The carrying amount of the entity's tbreign

currcncy d onrinatcd monutaty assiits and monuux'y liabilitius at thc cnd ol'thc rc1:ortirrg pcriod

:u'c as 1'oll

Thc cntiry nagcs lbrcign crchangc risk lionr futtu'c cornrncrcial transirctions and l'ocogniscd

ilitiss by projccting crpcctcd salr:s prouccds arrd matching thc samc with cxpcctudasscts and li
paymcnts.

Forcig uurrcncy srnsitirity analysis

owing table demonstrates the effec t on the company's statement of tinancial

cc on applying thc sunsitivity fbr a rsasonablu possiblu changc in thc uxchangc ratc

s

The

purlb
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Cheparerio sub coung, level 4 Hospitol (West Pokot Coutttlt Gouernment)
4nnuil Reporl anl Financial Stutentents lbr The Year Entled 3d' June 2022

of'the threc main trirnsaction currencics, *'ith all othcr variables held constant. The reveruc

u'ould ulso occur il'thc Kcnya Shilling applcciatcd rvirh all other variables heltl constant.

I ntcrest ratc risk

Lnterest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

rcsult of changes in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises from bank

duposiu. This exposes the uompany to cash tlow interest rate risk. The intclcst ratc risk

exposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company's deposits.

l\lanagcmcnt of intcrcst ratc risk

To uranage thc irrterest rate risk, manag€ cllt has errdeavouled to bank with institurions that

otltr tavourablc irltcrcs! l'ates.

Srnsitivity analy'sis

Thc cntity analyses its intcrcst ratc cxposurc on a dyranric bnsis by conducting a scnsitiviry

analysis. This involves detcmrining thc ir"npact on protit or loss of dcfincd rate shitts. Thc

sensitivity analysis fbr intercst ratc risk assunlcs that all other variablcs, in particular tbrcign

cxchaugc ralcs, rcrnaiu corxtant. Thc analysis has becn pertbnled on the same basis as thc

prior ycar'.

Using thc snd of thc yuar tigurcs, thu scnsitivity analysis indicatcs thc impaut on thu
statcmerlt ot tinarrcial pertbrmarrcc il'cun'cnt lloating intcrcs! rales incrcasc/dcclcasc by onc
purcuntirgc point as a dscrsasci incrcasr; o1' KShs xxx (20rx: KShs xx.r). A ratc

incrcase/dccrease of 5",'o would result in a dccreasciincrcasc in surplus ot'KShs xxx {20xx -
KShs).

iv)Crpitel Risk Manrgcnrent

The objective of the entity's capital nsk management is to safeguard the Hospital's

ability to continuc as u going corlc€nr. Tlrc cnrity capital struchrre conrpriscs ol'tltc

fbllowing tiruds:

10. Rclatcd Party Balances

Naturc of rrlatcd part!' rclrtionships

Entitius and othcr partius rulatcd to thu cntity inclurlc thosc partics who havu thc ability tc'

cxercisr control or exercise signiticant intluence ovcl its opelating and tinancial dccisions.

Rslatcd p;urius inuludc nlanagcmcnt pursonncl, thuir associatcs, and slosc lamily murnburs.

2S



(he sub couttty level 4 Hospital (West Pokot County Governmenl)
lnnud ani Finonciul Stalententsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Govc ent of Kcnva

vsr'runcnt ot' Kcnvl is thc prinuipul shar'choltlcr ol' thc errflr_r,, lrolding I 00% ot' lhc CSCH

tcrrst. Thr Govu'runcnt ol'Krnya has providcd l'ull gutu'antcrs ttt rll long-tcnn lcndcrs ol thc

tlt donrestic anrl cxterral. Other lelated prrties inclurle

i) The National Govcrnrnent;

ii) Thc Ministry of Hr:;rlth

ii| Kcy managclncnt;

iv) Boardot'tlircctors:

Thc G

cquity

enriryl

2t)
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XlX. Apprndices

.{ppendix t: Progrcss on Folluw up Of Auditur Rctontnttndations
1'l-re lbllowing is thc summary oiissues taised by the cxtcural auditor, aud ntatrascment

crlmnlents that $.ere provirled to the auditor. We lravc norninatcd lbcal persons to resolvc tltc

vari6us issuus as shown l-rclow with thc assouiatud timc lianru within which wc cr1:cct thc

issucs to lrc lesolvcd.

6mP
\ceoun ting ()l liccl'

Guidancc Notrs:

(i) Use tlre same ref'erensc nuntber.s as contained in thc cxtcrnal audit report.

(ii) Obtarn the "Issue/Obsen'ation" and "management comments", required above, from the

tinal extcmal audit rcpon drat is signed by Managcment.

(iii) Bclbrc apprtrving thu rcport" discuss thc timutiams with thu appointud Focal Point

pcr.sons witlfrr your cutity rcspolrsible the tbr implcmcrttatiort of each issuc.

( iv ) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting thrs

report to National TreasutY.

l0

Rrfrrcnrc
\o. on thc
r\furn nl

audit Rcporl

Issuc /
(lhscrvll iotrs
frorn.\uditur

i\lenegr:nrrttl
comments

Status:
(Rcsoh'ed i

-\'rrr
fresolved)

Tinrrfrl rn c:
(l'ut u ttole
fllwn lvu
exp!il the
issuc h he
revlwtl)
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Appendix 2. Triat balance as 30thn June 2022

CITEI}ARERIA SIJB COUN'I'Y LEVIL 4
}IOSPI'TAI,

t)

AS F 30t6t2022

IIRI'PO sT AND IF AN NC LIA 't'S i\ 'T t,l NI NTIt S

UNE 30,2022rOR TIIE YEAR ENDEDJ

TRIAL BALANCD

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Tramfers from the County Governntent

DR
Descri ll

CR

7.48-s.786In- kind contrib
Govcmment

utions from the County

80, l6 I .680Grants fi'o dITI no ors an dd vele o en al'tnerspln I)

Total revenue
n,647,466

Employee costs

Medical/Clinical costs

ses

Board of Management Expenses

Repairs and maintenance

13,2',18,344

71,707 ,230

308,731

450,200

1,595,278

CASHAND BANK BALANCEs

Kenya Commercial bank 1267071257
20,446

Kenya Comrnercial bank 1144925754
155,037

cash in hand

ACCOUNTS PAYABL D-

Payables

3,r03
Prepayments

3t

General expenses
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